Be exceptional

gC Greenhead College

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION

Minutes of the Audit & Risk Committee meeting held in G17

Govs present:

In attendance:

Monday 11" November 2024, 5pm
Ed Wynn (Chair); Mohammed Usman; Stuart Irving

Mike Benson (external audit); Paul Goddard (internal audit) (via

Teams); Lauren Metcalfe (DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEQO); Mo

Bunter (Principal); Sharon Roper (Clerk)

F&E Govs staying-on for A&R meeting: Connie Laing (left 18.15);

John Holroyd

Apologies: Alison Jones; Anthony Hurley; Chris Kneale
AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION
Joint Meeting Joint Meeting with Audit & Risk Committee and
with A&R Auditors, 5.00pm to consider 2023/24 Year-end Report
committee and & Financial Statements, External Audit Report 2023/24,
internal & and letter of representation, all previously circulated
external auditors | (these Joint Meeting minutes are replicated in F&E
Committee minutes).
JHO welcomed A&R and F&E committee members and
internal and external auditors to the joint meeting.
1. 2023/24 Year- 2023/24 Year-end report and Financial Statements,
end Financial previously circulated.
Statements 1. MBE said there is enough scope to make amendments to
the report, if required, JHO has identified some
amendments but nothing material. LME

2. JHO asked how GC’s surpluses compare to MBE’s other
clients — compared to his other college clients, there are
some that are similar and some have less surplus.

3. GC’s staff cost percentages are efficient and are one of
the lowest of their clients. MBR asked if there is a national
average of staffing costs to income — MBE said 70%-75%
but an average figure can be misleading.

4. JHO said the audit appears to have gone well, MBE
agreed and said the split of the finance and estate roles has
worked well.

5. MBE has seen improvement with GC Risk Registers this
year.

6. SIR asked about the unfunded pay increase of 5.5% -
MBE said if the decision is not reversed by the government,

Page 1 of 9




in the long term Sixth Form Colleges will begin to feel a
detrimental effect.

RAR said that this appears to be further pressure to force
sixth form colleges to academise and reminded members
that any surplus held by sixth form colleges is due to be
reviewed by government in 2025.

7. PGO said he’s seen good practice at GC and there are
other areas where GC is working to improve process.

F&E and A&R members recommend approval of the
2023/24 Year-end Report and Financial Statements

2. External Audit
Report 2023/24

External Audit Report 2023/24, previously circulated.

MBE thanked the Finance team and said this has been the
smoothest audit undertaken at the college.

1. The Report is produced for GC, the ESFA and to satisfy
communication requirements.

2. At the planning stage the main risks facing GC are
detailed, these are similar for all colleges and academy
trusts. The report details the audit work undertaken on
these risks and the conclusion is that the external auditors
are happy with everything.

3. The income and expenditure account is straight forward.
Total income is £16.9 million, part of the income increase
relates to an increase in the amount payable per student.
The bottom line is a surplus of just over £1 million after
deferred income, depreciation, local government pension
scheme adjustments, staff costs and interest.

In the last three years surplus cash has been saved for
capital projects.

Staff costs percentages (69%), this figure is very good
compared to 7 years ago.

4. The balance sheet shows Hirst building being transferred
in from DfE, the grants received for the building are shown
as a liability under deferred capital grants and this is
released every year matching depreciation.

5. Cash has increased to £5.6 million mainly due to short
term deposits in the cash flow.

6. The key measure of liquidity is net current assets, which
is £4.7 million. The strong liquid position of the college has
been maintained.

7. The actuaries reported a pension asset again; however,
the asset ceiling report reduces the asset to zero because
the asset will not result in a reduction in future contributions.
ESFA have been informed of this advice given to clients
and they are happy with it.

8. The cash flow statement explains how the surplus
translates into cash. The surplus of £1 million plus non-cash
items generated £1.3 million, there was some spend, some
short-term deposits were added back into the bank account
leaving a headline movement of cash of £1.6 million. This
amount is distorted due to £1.3 million held on deposit.

Page 2 of 9




9. There were no internal control issues. Issues routinely
picked up with other clients include management accounts
not being up to standard and controls over credit cards and
authorisation of expenditure.

10. The unadjusted misstatements are above triviality but
following discussions with management there was no need
to adjust the financial statements. The only misstatement
that would affect income and expenditure account is bank
interest that could have been brought into 2023/24 financial
statements.

EWY asked if this is being added into financial year 2024-
25 —itis.

11. EWY asked what materiality threshold is set for the
audit — this is 2% of income/expenditure. The auditors do
pick up on things below the threshold, the official materiality
is calculated and goes into the sample sizes.

12. JHO asked if the pension asset is a difference in
approach by Murray Smith — there has been much debate
around this, ESFA would not give a decision about
recognising the asset and neither did the Institute of
Chartered Accountancy report. Virtually all audit firms this
year will have a zero figure.

RAR asked if this also applies to pension liabilities — MBE
said that liabilities are always reported.

F&E and A&R members recommend approval of the
External Audit Report 2023/24.

3. Murray Smith
letter of
representation

F&E and A&R members recommend approval of the
Letter of Representation.

4. Risk Registers
& Summary of
Key Risks/KPI

This was an agenda item at both committees and therefore
this item was moved to the joint part of the A&R/F&E
meeting.

SWA summarised the Risk Register Summary, College
Risk Register and Hirst Risk Register, all previously
circulated.

1. E1 & E3 (Disaster recovery policy and emergency plan)
Good progress has been made, and these are now within
risk appetite. The policy and plan are both on the A&R
agenda (11/11/24).

2. Two new risks have been added: (E10) Capital
development projects do not meet deadlines and (R4)
Careers and Skills Lead Governor vacancy.

3. (E17H) Hirst building not working as intended, Hirst has
been live for 12 months and the defects period has ended;
this risk has been archived.

4. EWY asked about the risk for Careers & Skills Lead
Governor vacancy which sits at a residual risk score of 15,

Page 3 of 9




the highest risk across both registers, and if this has an
impact with Ofsted.

MBR will be speaking to a college who were inspected
recently and will ask if Ofsted expect a Career & Skills Lead
Governor to be in place.

MBR has also asked SFCA colleagues the same question,
nobody has been asked this by Ofsted, potentially this is a
risk score that can be dropped.

All governors have been asked to complete a skills template
to help demonstrate the breadth of experience throughout
the Board, and governor link visits have an impact.

MUS asked how long an Ofsted inspection lasts — it takes
four days.

5. RAR asked if staff strike action is recorded on the risk
register — it isn’t currently, this will be added to the risk
register.

LWI asked if GC is contacting the media to highlight the
unfunded pay rise and to advise them that GC staff are
prepared to strike to highlight the issue.

This conversation took place at the beginning of the A&R
meeting:

6. PGO asked that Digital Disruption is considered for the
Risk Register in addition to Cyber Security. There are
currently risks around Atrtificial Intelligence and Deep Fakes.
There should also be central control across college with Al
because staff uploading Al software exposes the college to
new risks.

EWY expects the new strategic and operational plans to
have further detail around this.

MBR said that the SFCA national committee have shared a
national Al policy today — this will feed into the Risk register,
once GC have put an Al policy in place.

MBR

SWA

MBR

MBR/SWA

MBR/SWA

1. Welcome,
Apologies

EWY welcomed participants.
Apologies as above.

A new external governor will join A&R committee in 2025.

2. Declarations

No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest.

3. Minutes 23/9/24

3.1 Minutes 23/9/24, previously circulated, approved by
Committee, signed-off by Chair, returned to Clerk for filing.

3.2. Matters arising — Action Log:
EWY thanked SWA and LME for the work that has gone

into closing off the actions. He also thanked PDI for his
detailed responses to the actions.

Clerk

Page 4 of 9




1. (23/9/24 Min 3.2.2.3) Output graphs on the disaster
management surveys, this was a limitation of the software.
EWY asked for a better solution in future and suggested
PowerBi.

2. (23/9/24 Min 3.2.2.4) Catastrophic hardware failure. The
due date needs to be changed to 16/6/25.

3. (23/9/24 Min 3.2.2.4) Servers being moved to the cloud
EWY asked for a plan and timeline. This will be fed into the
operational plan.

4. (23/9/24 Min 5.5) A&R members asked to complete core
risk training. Change the due date to 17/3/25.

5. (23/9/24 Min 5.5) Financial training for A&R and F&E
governors. EWY and LME need to discuss this further.

6. (23/9/24 Min 5.7) KPI monitoring — EWY asked if this was
on track, SWA will chase CLT for their data.

7. A&R committee members approved the closure of action
numbers: 2-3-7-10-11-12-13-16-17-18-19-20-21-23-29-31-
32-33-34-37.

Clerk

PDI/SWA

Clerk

EWY/LME

SWA

Clerk

4. Meeting of
Auditors with
Members only if
required (No
Officers)

EWY asked if the auditors would like to speak with
governors only (no staff present).

Neither did. The opportunity for governors to speak to the
auditors without staff being present is scheduled for A&R on
17/3/25.

Clerk

5. Audit & Risk
Committee
Annual Report

Audit & Risk Committee Annual report, previously
circulated.

This is a summary of the committee’s work during AY
2023/24.

PGO observed that it's a good report but felt that more
should be added to the committee’s overall opinion in line
with expectations in the Audit Code of Practice.

The committee’s opinion should include assurance
arrangements, risk management and control processes for
the effective and efficient use of resources, solvency and
the safeguarding of the assets.

EWY asked if the conclusion to the report should be
amended to reflect that a level of assurance is provided
across these areas. PGO agreed and said the Internal Audit
Annual Report opinion says that GC has adequate and
effective risk management, governance and internal control
processes.

MBE added that a fuller conclusion is included in the
Financial Statements (page 26) which covers the areas that
are missing in the A&R Committee Annual Report.

Clerk will amend the conclusion of the Annual Report to
reflect the above discussion.

Clerk

Page 5 of 9




6. Internal Audit

Paul Goddard, from Scrutton Bland gave an update on the
Internal Audit papers which were previously circulated.

6.1 Annual Report 2023-24

1. The overall opinion is that there is adequate and effective
risk management, governance and control processes.

2. PGO noted that the audit work on the Data Protection
Framework highlighted this is an area that needs
strengthening.

3. PGO thanked GC management for their engagement in
the audits. These were completed in a short time frame
because Scrutton Bland were not appointed as internal
auditors until December 2023.

4. Four individual audits were completed together with a
Follow Up audit of previous recommendations.

5. GC’s assurance levels and recommendations were
benchmarked against Scrutton Bland’s other education
clients. GC is slightly under the average for their clients.
EWY said that the report is fair, GC has aspirations to
improve, and there are no red flags in the report.

6.2 Final Report — Follow up of previous recommendations
1. A&R committee previously agreed that the IAS should
concentrate on medium risks from 2022/23 and previous
years.

2.The overall conclusion was that good progress has been
made.

3. Thirteen recommendations were checked, seven are
closed and the remainder are in different stages. GC
management have given thorough updates for the
outstanding actions. IAS are reassured that these
recommendations are being taken seriously, and work is
underway to close them.

4. SIR said that the previous auditors had issues with
support from a previous postholder and SIR was reassured
by the feedback from the recent audits and the significant
improvements made by the new staffing structure.

EWY agreed and said GC is in a materially different and
positive place compared to last year.

MBR said the new postholders arrived in February 2024
and their impact has been phenomenal.

MBR thanked MBE and PGO and their audit teams for how
they managed the audits in a supportive way.

9.3 Progress Report

2024-25 audits started in November, and the Progress
report confirms when the final reports will be presented to
A&R committee.

7. External Audit

Nothing further to update.

Page 6 of 9




8. Amended
Terms of
Reference

Audit & Risk Terms of Reference, previously circulated

The A&R Terms of Reference have been updated to reflect
the External Governance Review recommendation that
refer to oversight of Health & Safety and Post 16 Audit
Code of Practice should be added.

The Clerk asked PGO for his opinion on the A&R Terms of
Reference — he said that verbatim wording can be taken
from the Audit Code of Practice to populate the A&R Terms
of Reference.

MBE asked how the oversight of Health & Safety (H&S) is
presented to A&R committee. SWA said there are Health &
Safety KPIs which will be monitored and SWA will report to
A&R on any key H&S issues.

EWY said it has been agreed that H&S oversight will now
sit with A&R committee and will be covered in every A&R
meeting.

A&R committee members approved the amended Terms of
Reference subject to the above amendments.

Clerk

9. Policies to
review

1. Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery Policy and
Emergency Plan
These are confidential papers.

This was a confidential discussion.

A&R committee members approved the Business
Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy, subject to the
above amendments, and noted the Emergency Plan.

2. Out of College Educational Trips, Visits, Enrichment &
Activities Policy and Staff Guide —

1. The whole process in relations to trips has been reviewed
following negative feedback from staff about the previous
trips process.

2. The policy has been updated in line with national
guidance and Health & Safety requirements of running trips.
3. Processes that are a ‘must’ are explicit in the policy.

4. The process has been streamlined to help trip leaders in
respect of the administration and paperwork required.

5. Initial feedback from staff is positive.

6. The college Projects and Process Manager has
responsibility for oversight of trips and ensuring the policy is
adhered to.

7. The staff guide is an easy to follow manual with links to a
suite of risk assessments, standard letters and a finance
spreadsheet which will ensure the trips are financially
viable.

Page 7 of 9




8. EWY asked if the trips process is automated — it is on
Cedar with specific stages of approval built into it. Checks
regarding safeguarding and ALS are also included.

9. The policy also reflects the sustainability plan with staff
asked to find sustainable options regarding travel or find a
sustainability project to offset.

10. EWY asked that checking with the FCO for any
overseas trips is added into the policy.

11. EWY asked about the ‘organising transport’ section —
this is a work in progress with the end goal that preferred
providers are used. EWY asked that the wording ‘where
possible preferred providers are used; the list of preferred
providers is to be confirmed'.

12. SIR asked how overseas trips are booked — it is booked
via a travel agent with a specialist educational package.
13. SIR thanked SWA for the remarkable work with this

policy.

The Out of College Trips, Visits and Activities Policy was
approved by A&R committee members, subject to the
above amendments.

SWA

SWA

10. Legal,
regulatory, sector
updates

EWY invited participants to give updates:

1. MBE shared that in recent audits some of his clients have
not considered the Managing Public Money rules regarding
severance payments. The Financial Handbook should be
consulted when considering severance payments to check
the limits that need prior approval. If in doubt contact the
ESFA directly.

2. PGO said that at an operational level there has been an
increase in internal fraud. The root cause in most cases is
an internal perpetrator who has been given a high level of
trust. Rigour, questioning and fraud awareness must be
applied when authorising.

3. PGO said that under MPM, a Procurement Act for the
public sector is due to be rolled out early in 2025. This will
add transparency around procurement decisions. SWA said
that GC’s Procurement Policy was reviewed at the end of
last AY, she was mindful of the upcoming changes when
reviewing this policy.

4. PGO said that Employment Rights reforms are
underway, and this will affect employers and how they take
care of their employees.

5. MBE said that the most common error in external audits
is that invoices are not approved at the correct level. This
makes fraud with invoices a bigger risk.

LME has set expectations that procedure must be followed
with no exceptions.

EWY asked how GC feels about its internal fraud detection
and when was this reviewed.

MBR said that in the short term there is some assurance
because the finance and estates roles have been split, and
processes have been reviewed.

Page 8 of 9




EWY asked that internal fraud risk is reviewed. MBR agreed
and suggested this can be completed in the Spring term.
MBE said the issue is usually someone not adhering to
policies and bank details being changed on outward
payments.

JHO said in his experience it is often the person that you
would never suspect who perpetrates frauds.

LME said that she is segregating duties so there are levels
of authority.

6. SIR asked about other categories of workers in college
like agency workers — PGO said there is a duty of care for
everyone on site and contracts held with agencies need
checking. There might be fewer companies in the local area
which impairs the tender and procurement decision making
processes.

7. SWA said that Martins Law is going through parliament
and the new Business Continuity Policy has pre-empted this
and it has been captured in the policy.

8. LME said that increased National Insurance will not affect
GC, the rise in National Minimum Wage will affect the
college, pay scales will be looked at and these will be
reflected in the budget.

LME

11. AoB

None

12. Confidentiality

Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery Policy and
Emergency Plan.

13. End of
meeting review

A&R committee members were happy with the level of
assurance, and the internal fraud discussion was a good
opportunity for self-reflection.

EWY thanked SIR and MUS for their efforts to attend and
make the meeting quorate.

14. Date next mtg

Date of next meeting: Mon 17 March 2025, 4.30pm at
College

All: note

Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 10/12/24

Approved & signed by, Ed Wynn, Chair of Audit and Risk Committee, dated 17/3/25

Page 9 of 9




